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August 5, 2007

To Bidders for RFP# ED-07-R-0076 “Technical Assistance for Helping K-3 Parents with Low Literacy Skills Build Knowledge about Reading”:
As notified in the Request for Proposal, all questions regarding the application process were to be submitted by 12:00 pm on Tuesday September 4, 2007. The responses to questions received as of 12:00 pm on Tuesday September 4, 2007are as follows:

Questions and Answers to RFP# ED-07-R-0076: 

Question 1: 
 I was wondering if this would result in a Firm-Fixed Price Contract, or Time and Materials.
 

Answer: 
This will be Firm-Fixed Price Contract

Question 2:
Also, is there an estimated or maximum value available for this contract? Is this a new requirement? 

Answer:
This is a procurement being posted by the Institute. Please read the statement of work background and purpose of acquisition for further details about the Institute’s requirements, and or visit our website at www.nifl.gov.


This is not a simplified acquisition.

All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined by the offeror and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement.


The offeror should detail the level of effort in the proposal.

See Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) 15.305 (a) 1

http://acquisition.gov/far/index.html

Question 3:
Is the content required for Task 2: Create a profile/overview of the two sites where the pilot project will take place different from the content of the brief description of the two sites that is submitted in the response to this solicitation?

Answer:
No, task 2 and the requirement from the evaluation criteria and instructional cover letter are all one in the same. The offeror shall provide information for task 2, as instructed in # 5 of the instructional cover letter.

Question 4:
Is the number of parent participants to be “no less than 12 and not to exceed 40 participants per site” as stated in II. Purpose of Acquisition, or is it “20 – 35” as stated in Task 5? 
Answer:
Both. The two sets of figures fall within the same range of one another.


For “the purpose section” “no less than 12 and not to exceed 40” serves the purpose of providing parameters to assist the offeror in making a recommendation for the number of parent participants. In task 5, the “20-35” figure has been included again to set parameters that will help guide the development of the training content by providing an estimate number of participants. The reality being that what the Institute suggests in the SOW and what the offeror recommends in their proposal in the end may not match the reality of recruitment and site participation under the actual contract, but it is best to be prepared for low, high and average participation.

Question 5: 
The Institute’s previous solicitation (#ED-07-R-0070) asked the contractor to develop a training manual and a parent guide. Is the purpose of Task 5 (Develop the parent training content for the pilot project to build low literacy parents’ knowledge of how K-3 children learn to read and how they can support that learning) to develop content for the training of trainers, or to revise the content of the manual and guide developed for the previous solicitation? 
Answer:
Task 5 is asking the offeror to enhance the manual and parent guide referenced in ED-07-R-0070. These products and materials are yet to be developed, which means the level of detail of each is an unknown factor. 


Task 5 of this solicitation, ED-07-R-0076, allows for the contractor to utilize these resources, and enhance these resources in order to provide the best training to parents as possible. Task 5 also takes into consideration that trainings need to be planned out in a level of detail that may or may not be found in products being produced for this solicitation.
Question 6:  
Are there contingencies in place to address the impact on this contract’s 
deliverables should the release of the training manual and parent guide be delayed? 
Answer:
This will be discussed at the Post-Award Meeting
Question 7:
Is there an estimated dollar amount for this contract? 

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement. Please see answer to question 2.
Question 8:
Is this a fixed price contract? 

Answer:
Please see question 1.

Question 9:
Would NIFL consider, as part of the pilot project expert review group, parent leaders and/or parent education specialists? 

Answer:
The Institute will review and consider all recommendations made by the contractor.

Question 10:
The announcement letter states that this award will be a fixed price contract and that "the contractor will be paid upon receipt of all deliverables and a satisfactory invoice." Will the government allow progress payments?

Answer:
This will be a firm fixed price contract with monthly payments. At the time of the contract award and at the post award meeting the contractor and Institute contract staff may discuss payment schedule options
Question 11: 
Is any information available as to the level of effort, in terms of either professional work hours or dollars, anticipated for completing the scope of work?

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement. The offeror should detail the level of effort in the proposal.


See answer to question 2.

Question 12:
As I prepare my technical pages, I realize that I'm at eight pages (single-spaced) and it is suggested that we provide 'detailed descriptions' as set forth within the proposal evaluation.  The depth of detail to be employed, in my estimation, should be of such description that an objective reader might be able to recognize that the material being presented has ample merit.
If others are of like minds, might not we consider lengthening the technical section?

Answer:
No other questions or requests have been received regarding extending length of submitted technical proposal. 10 pages double-spaced will stand as the technical proposal submission requirement. The Institute has asked for detailed descriptions, though it should be noted that detailed could be succinct rather than long. Please note that the requirement for the body of proposal is 10 pages double spaced, there is an additional 2 pages granted for description of a management plan and 2 pages granted for the profile/overview/description of the 2 proposed sites where the pilot project will take place, which brings the actual # of total pages of the technical proposal to 14 pages. 

Question 13:  
Is there a guideline for submitting the budget and description? Also, I am not sure what the procedure is for explaining the two locations I would use. I have not located any sites as of yet. Do you have any suggestions? I am an educator in critical literacy and teach for a University but do not have a location yet to meet with students. Any suggestions?

Answer:
Please see answer to questions 2, and 11 and see instructional cover letter.

Question 14:
Are indirect costs allowed? 

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement.
Question 15:
What is the expected upper limit of allowed costs for the project? 

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement. See Answer to Question 2.
Question 16:
For purpose of inserting travel into the budget, is the day for DC meetings a full day that would require two over night stays in Washington DC? 

Answer:
The post award meeting is estimated to be a half-day meeting.

Question 17:
Are there specific data that should be collected to determine the success of the project outcomes? 

Answer:
This will be discussed at the Post Award Meeting

Question 18:
Can staff salary dollars be allocated to provide the training? 

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement.
Question 19:
Should the allocation of staff dollars be based on a yearly salary or a dollar per hour accounting of the time it would take the staff to learn the strategies, prepare for the training, and implement the training? 

Answer:
It is up to the offeror to determine what the time and labor costs are for each task requirement in the statement of work. 

Question 20:
How comprehensive are the materials to be used for training? 

Answer:
The parent activity/resource guide and training manual have not been developed as yet.  A brief description of these materials is provided in the statement of work, which includes how these materials should be used/utilized.

Question 21:
How many pages are the parent activity/resource guide and the training manual?  

Answer:
The parent activity/resource guide and training manual have not been developed as yet, so the number of pages is not known.

Question 22:
How many hours would you estimate that it would take the contractor and trainers to learn the material within the guide and manual? 

Answer:
It is up to the offeror (you) to determine this.

Question 23:
Can dollars be spent to advertise for participants? Flyers? Staff dedicated to calling potential participants? 

Answer:
These items are considered direct cost and indirect costs and it is up to the offeror to include not/ include such items in the budget proposal. All costs associated with the pilot project shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement.

Question 24:
Is NIFL considering more than one award under this solicitation? 

Answer:
There will be one contract awarded for this solicitation.
 

Question 25:
Will the awardee be expected to add content to the training materials, or will the materials to be available by December 2007 be comprehensive?

Answer:
It is anticipated that the training materials will be available by the end of December 2007 and these are the materials that will be utilized by the contractor to develop and implement the trainings. 

 

Question 26:
HOW MANY PILOT PROJECTS ARE YOU WANTING TO START?

Answer:
This is one pilot project as described in the statement of work.
 

Question 27:
HOW WILL BE THE LOCATIONS BE DETERMINED?

Answer:
It is up to the offeror to determine the locations where the pilot program 



will take place.

Question 28:
WHO WILL PAY FOR THE TRIP FOR POST TRAINING AND WERE WILL IT BE HELD?

Answer:
All costs associated with this procurement shall be determined and included into the budget proposal submitted by the offeror for this procurement.

Question 29:
IF THE FINAL SIZE OF STAFF WILL BE 4, DOES THIS MEAN 4 AT 

EACH SITE OR 4 OVERALL?

Answer:
It is up to the offeror to determine the size of staff needed for this project.

Question 30:
CAN I HAVE TWO SITES WITH 4 STAFF AT EACH SITE AND I BE THE PROJECT DIRECTOR OVER THE ENTIRE PROGRAM?

Answer:
Please see answer to Question 29.

Question 31:
 IF A MAXIMUM OF 40 PARENTS ARE ALLOWED PER SITE AND THE TOTAL CHILDREN MIGHT EXCEED 40; IS ONLY 4 STAFF ENOUGH TO MEET THE NEEDS OF EACH FAMILY?

Answer:
Please see the answers to questions 29.

Question 32:
HOW WILL THE PARENTS AND CHILDREN GET TO THE SITES AND IS THERE AN ALLOWANCE FOR TRANSPORTATION?

Answer:
Please see answer to Question 28.

Question 33:
ARE YOU INTERESTED IN A PROPOSAL FROM ME WITH A BUDGET OUTLINING MY PROGRAM NEEDS?

Answer:
All interested offeror’s may submit a technical proposal and a cost proposal to the Institute following the posted directions. The technical proposal and the cost proposal are 2 separate documents and shall be submitted separately.

